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ZONING CHANGE REVIEW SHEET 

 
CASE NUMBER: C14H-2015-0147 HLC DATE:  January 25, 2016 
 PC DATE:   
     
APPLICANTS: Annie-Laurie Grabiel, Clayton + Little, Architects, applicant 
 Bruce Curtis and Fred Daniel, owners 
 
HISTORIC NAME:  Peter and Esther Allidi House 
 
WATERSHED:  Lady Bird Lake 
 
ADDRESS OF PROPOSED ZONING CHANGE:  1315 Kenwood Avenue 
 
ZONING FROM:  SF-3-NCCD to SF-3-H-NCCD 
 
SUMMARY STAFF RECOMMENDATION:  Staff recommends the  proposed zoning change 
from single family residence, neighborhood conservation (SF-3-NCCD) combining district to 
single family residence, neighborhood conservation – Historic Landmark (SF-3-H-NCCD) 
combining district zoning. 
 
QUALIFICATIONS FOR LANDMARK DESIGNATION: 
Architecture and historic associations. 
 
HISTORIC LANDMARK COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
PLANNING COMMISSION ACTION:   
 
DEPARTMENT COMMENTS:  The house is listed in the Comprehensive Cultural 
Resources Survey (1984) with no priority ranking for research. 
CITY COUNCIL DATE:     ACTION: 
 
ORDINANCE READINGS: 1ST  2ND 3RD    ORDINANCE NUMBER: 
 
CASE MANAGER:  Steve Sadowsky     PHONE:  974-6454 
 
NEIGHBORHOOD ORGANIZATION:  South River City Neighborhood Association 
 
BASIS FOR RECOMMENDATION: 
Architecture:  
One-story, rectangular-plan, pyramidal-roofed frame house with a central, front-gabled 
pedimented entry porch with a segmental-arched entry; single and paired 1:1 fenestration 
with Craftsman-style wooden screens; Craftsman-style door with sidelights. 
Historical Associations: 
The house was built in 1928; Peter and Esther Allidi were the first owners and occupants of the 
house.  Peter Allidi was a Swiss-born painter who specialized in interior decoration, and was of 
the same school as craftsmen like Peter Mansbendel and Fortunat Weigl in the decorative 
house arts in Austin.  He designed and executed the painted loggia ceiling of the old Austin 
Public Library (now the Austin History Center), and had several commissions on the 
University of Texas campus, including the Stark Library in the Main Building (1938), and the 
architecture library in Goldsmith Hall.  He also did the interiors of the Central Christian 
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Church on Guadalupe Street.  Esther Allidi was born in France and had a French perfume 
business downtown in the 1920s.  She was also an excellent cook, and was featured in several 
stories in the Austin newspapers dealing with French cooking.  She worked as a chef in several 
restaurants in town, had a catering business, and developed a signature salad dressing. 
 
PARCEL NO.:  03020303030000 
 
LEGAL DESCRIPTION:  Lot 4, Block 46, Travis Heights 
  
ESTIMATED ANNUAL TAX ABATEMENT: $6,543 (no caps apply). 
 
APPRAISED VALUE:  $600,836 
 
PRESENT USE:  Residence 
 
CONDITION:  Excellent 
 
PRESENT OWNERS:   
Bruce Curtis and Fred Daniel 
1315 Kenwood Avenue 
Austin Texas, 78704 
 
DATE BUILT:  ca. 1928 
 
ALTERATIONS/ADDITIONS:  A new addition to the back is under construction; it is not 
visible from the street, and was reviewed by the Historic Landmark Commission in 2015. 
 
ORIGINAL OWNER(S):  Peter and Esther Allidi (1928) 
 
OTHER HISTORICAL DESIGNATIONS:   None. 
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LOCATION MAP 
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1315 Kenwood Avenue 
ca. 1928 

 
 

OCCUPANCY HISTORY 
1315 Kenwood Avenue 

 
City Directory Research, Austin History Center 
By City Historic Preservation Office 
March, 2015 
 
1992  Beverly E. Williams, owner 
  Clerk, University of Texas 
 
1985-86 Beverly E. Williams, owner 

Administrative secretary, University of Texas 
 
1981  Beverly E. and Amy V. Williams, owners 
  Typist, University of Texas 
 
1977  Amy V. French, renter 

Department manager, Austin public schools 
NOTE:  The directory indicates that Amy V. French was a new resident at this 
address. 

 
1973  No return 
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1968  William A. and Olivia A. Dobbins, owners 
  No occupation listed 
 
1962  Esther M. Allidi, owner 

Widow, Peter Allidi 
No occupation listed 

 
1959  Esther M. Allidi, owner 

Widow, Peter Allidi 
No occupation listed 

 
1953  Esther M. Allidi, owner 
  Widow, Peter Allidi 
  No occupation listed 
 
1949 Esther M. Allidi, owner 

Widow, Peter Allidi 
No occupation listed 
 

1947  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
Building contractor (office at the house) 

 
1944-45 Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  Building contractor (office at the house) 
 
1941  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  Painter (office at the house) 
 
1939  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  Painter 
 
1937  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 

Painter (office at the house) 
NOTE:  The address is listed as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 

 
1935  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  Painter 
  NOTE:  The address is listed as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 
 
1932-33 Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  No occupation listed 
  NOTE:  The address is listed as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 
 
1930-31 Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 
  Contractor 
  NOTE:  The address is listed as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 
 
1929  Peter and Esther Allidi, owners 

Painter 
NOTE: The address is listed as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 

 
1927  The address is not listed in the directory. 

NOTE:  Peter and Esther Allidi are listed at 810 W. 10th Street; he was a painter. 
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BIOGRAPHICAL NOTES 
Peter and Esther Allidi (ca. 1928 – ca. 1965) 
The 1940 U.S. Census shows Peter and Esther Allidi as the owners of this house (which is 
listed as 1315 Kenwood Avenue), and which was worth $6,000.  Peter Allidi was 55, had been 
born in Switzerland, and was an interior decorator.  Esther Allidi was 45, had been born in 
France, and had no occupation listed.  They had a 9-year old daughter, Louisette, who had 
been born in Texas. 
 
The 1930 U.S. Census shows Peter and Esther F. Allidi as the owners of this house, which was 
worth $4,000.  Peter Allidi was 45, had been born in Switzerland, and was a house decorator.  
Esther F. Allidi was 36, had been born in France, and had no occupation listed.  They had no 
children listed with them.  The address is shown as 1403 Kenwood Avenue. 
 
The 1920 U.S. Census shows Peter and Esther Allidi as the renters of a house at 1906 (name 
unintelligible).  This census report shows that eter Alidi had immigrated in 1900, and Esther 
Allidi had immigrated in 1913.  He was a decorator with hos own shop; she was a nurse.  They 
had no children listed with them. 
 
His 1948 death certificate shows that Peter Allidi was living at 1315 Kenwood Avenue; he was 
born July 23, 1885 in Switzerland, and was an artist and interior decorator.  He had been living 
in the house on Kenwood for 32 years. 
 
His 1918 World War I draft registration card shows that Peter John Allidi was living at 1906 
Willow Street; he was born in Switzerland and was a house painter for Tom D. Hill in Donna, 
Texas.  He was of medium height, medium build, had brown eyes, and dark brown hair. 
 
Esther Allidi’s 1975 death certificate shows that she was living in Waco.  She was the owner of 
a café.  She had lived in Waco for 8 years. 
 
 
The concrete beams decorations were likely designed by Peter Allidi (1885-1948) and Harold Everett “Bubi” Jessen 
(1908-1979) in 1933. Allidi, born in Switzerland, also collaborated with Jessen to decorate the exterior loggia 
ceiling of the old Austin Public Library (1933) and was later employed to paint the Stark Library and Rare Book 
Study on the fourth floor of the Main Building (1937). The stenciled designs follow the theme of “The Progress of 
Architecture Through the Centuries” and feature famous buildings in architectural history and icons of the machine 
age. These decorations were the inspiration for the similar designs painted on the beams of the south lobby, added in 
the 1980s addition to the building. 
 
From Interiors, A Catalog of Historic and Significant Campus Interiors, Project Management and 
Construction Services, University of Texas at Austin, 2010. 
 
In 1928 the Austin voters approved $150,000 in bonds for a permanent 36,000 square foot building at the site, and 
the temporary building was moved to Angelina Street to become Austin’s first public library branch, the Carver 
Branch. Hugo Franz Kuehne, an Austin architect and a founder of the school of architecture at the University of 
Texas, designed the first permanent home of the Austin Public Library and construction began in 1932. Henry E. 
Wattinger was named the general contractor with a bid of $106,638; John L. Martin was the plumbing and heating 
contractor ($58,747); and Fox-Schmidt completed the electrical work ($4,048). The building took advantage of local 
materials and craftsmen. Cordova cream limestone was used to achieve the Italian Renaissance Revival style of the 
building. Fortunat Weigl, a German ironsmith who immigrated to Texas in 1913, created ornamental wrought iron 
work to enhance the balconies, doors and windows. Peter Mansbendel, a Swiss master woodcarver who came to 
Texas in 1911, carved much of the interior woodwork. Harold Everett “Bubi” Jessen (1908-1979), a local architect, 
and Peter Allidi (1885-1948), also a Swiss immigrant who was a local artist and interior decorator, painted the 
frescoes on the ceiling of the arched loggia on the north side of the building. Allidi had previously completed the 
decoration in the architecture library of Goldsmith Hall on the University of Texas Campus and Jessen was a student 
assistant on the project. (It is interesting to note that Peter Allidi’s wife, Esther Mirel Allidi, was the creator of Mrs. 
Allidi’s La Martinique salad dressing). 
 
From Austin Remembers . . . , Austin History Center Association, Winter, 2014.: 
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Ad for Mrs. Allidi’s perfume business 
Austin American, February 28, 1926 

 

 
Ad for Mrs. Esther Allidi’s French perfumes 

Austin Statesman, March 15, 1926 
 
 

 
News story of Pete Allidi’s award of a paint contract for the new newspaper offices 

Austin American-Statesman, May 24, 1936 
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Piano recital at the home of Esther Allidi, 1315 Kenwood Avenue 

Austin Statesman, December 31, 1939 
 
 

 
News story on the silver tea for the benefit of French war refugees hosted by Mrs. Esther Allidi 

Austin American-Statesman, June 16, 1940 
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Ad for Mrs. Esther Allidi’s position as the kitchen manager of La Conga 

Austin Statesman, January 29, 1946 
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News story on the funeral of Peter Allidi 
Austin Statesman, September 28, 1948 
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News story of Mrs. Esther Allidi’s cooking and catering business 

Austin Statesman, October 14, 1955 
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News story on Mrs. Esther Allidi’s salad dressing 

Austin American-Statesman, June 10, 1973 
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The 1935 Sanborn map shows the house with its address of 1403 Kenwood Avenue; this map is 

the first to show this section of the city. 
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The 1962 Sanborn map shows the house with the same configuration as shown on the 1935 
map above; the address shows both the old address of 1403 and the new address of 1315 

Kenwood Avenue. 
 

 
Water service permit to Peter Allidi for this house (1927) 


